
 

 
 

 

MEMBER DEVELOPMENT PANEL  
 

TUESDAY 3 FEBRUARY 2009 
7.30 PM  

 
PANEL AGENDA (STANDARDS) 

 
COMMITTEE ROOM 3, 

HARROW CIVIC CENTRE 
 
 

 
  MEMBERSHIP    (Quorum 3)  
 
    
 
  Chair: 

 
Councillor Jean Lammiman 

 
Councillors: 

 
Paul Osborn 
 
 

B E Gate 
Phillip O'Dell 
 

  
 

 
 

Reserve Members: 
 

1. Mrs Myra Michael 
2. Mrs Vina Mithani  
 

1. Keeki Thammaiah 
2. David Perry 
 

  
 

 
 

Issued by the Democratic Services Section, 
Legal and Governance Services Department 

 
 
Contact:  Damian Markland, Democratic Services Officer 
Tel:  020 8424 1785    E-mail:  damian.markland@harrow.gov.uk 

 
 
NOTE FOR THOSE ATTENDING THE MEETING: 
IF YOU WISH TO DISPOSE OF THIS AGENDA, PLEASE LEAVE IT BEHIND AFTER THE MEETING. IT 
WILL BE COLLECTED FOR RECYCLING. 



 

 

 
  HARROW COUNCIL 

 
MEMBER DEVELOPMENT PANEL  
 
TUESDAY 3 FEBRUARY 2009 
 

 
 

  AGENDA - PART I   
 

1. Attendance by Reserve Members:    
 To note the attendance at this meeting of any duly appointed Reserve 

Members. 
 
Reserve Members may attend meetings:- 
 
(i) to take the place of an ordinary Member for whom they are a reserve; 
(ii) where the ordinary Member will be absent for the whole of the 

meeting; and  
(iii) the meeting notes at the start of the meeting at the item ‘Reserves’ that 

the Reserve Member is or will be attending as a reserve; 
(iv) if a Reserve Member whose intention to attend has been noted arrives 

after the commencement of the meeting, then that Reserve Member 
can only act as a Member from the start of the next item of business 
on the agenda after his/her arrival. 

 
2. Declarations of Interest:    
 To receive declarations of personal or prejudicial interests, arising from 

business to be transacted at this meeting, from: 
 
(a) all Members of the Committee, Sub Committee, Panel or Forum; 
(b) all other Members present in any part of the room or chamber. 
 

3. Minutes:  (Pages 1 - 4) Enc. 
 A record of the informal discussion that took place at the inquorate Member 

Development meeting on 6 November 2008 is provided for formal noting. 
 

4. Public Questions:    
 To receive questions (if any) from local residents or organisations under the 

provisions of Committee Procedure Rule 19 (Part 4B of the Constitution). 
 

5. Petitions:    
 To receive petitions (if any) submitted by members of the public/Councillors 

under the provisions of Committee Procedure Rule 16 (Part 4B of the 
Constitution). 
 

6. Deputations:    
 To receive deputations (if any) under the provisions of Committee Procedure 

Rule 17 (Part 4B of the Constitution). 
 

7. IDeA Member Development Charter:    
 Presentation by Kris Hibbert of London Councils. 

 
 
 



 

 

8. INFORMATION REPORT - Member Development Programme Update:  
(Pages 5 - 8) 

Enc. 

 Report of the Divisional Director of Human Resources and Development. 
 

  AGENDA - PART II - Nil   
 



This page is intentionally left blank



Member Development Panel 
 

Notes of the informal meeting of the Member Development Panel held at the Civic 
Centre, Harrow on 6 November 2008. 
 
 
Present: 
Councillor Jean Lammiman 
Councillor Paul Osborn 
 
1. Quorum/Apologies for Absence 

 
Apologies for absence had been received from Councillor Phillip O’Dell. It was noted 
that the quorum for the meeting was 3 Members, and that the meeting was therefore 
inquorate. 
 
It was agreed to hold an informal discussion of the business on the agenda. 

 
2. Declarations of Interest 

 
RESOLVED 
 
To note that there were no declarations of interests made by Members in relation to the 
business transacted at this meeting. 

 
3. Arrangement of Agenda 
 
 RESOLVED 
 
 That all items be considered with the press and public present. 
 
4. Minutes 
 
 RESOLVED 
 

That the minutes of the meeting held on 4 September be taken as read and signed as a 
correct record. 

 
5. Public Questions, Petitions and Deputations 
 
 RESOLVED 
 

To note that no public questions were put, or petitions or deputations received at this 
meeting under the provisions of Committee Procedure Rules 19, 16 and 17 
respectively. 

 
6. INFORMATION REPORT – Member Development Programme Update 
 

The Panel received a report of the Divisional Director of Human Resources and 
Development, which reviewed the progress of the 2008 Member Development 
Programme and set out plans for the implementation of a full programme for 
2008/2009. 

 

Agenda Item 3
Pages 1 to 4

1



 
Planning for the IDeA / London Councils Charter 
The Learning & Development Service Manager reported that, based upon the self-
assessment template discussed at the previous meeting, he had compiled an action 
plan that set out the activities, tasks and provisional milestones required in order to 
achieve charter recognition.  

 
Coaching 
The Learning & Development Service Manager reported that, following a meeting held 
with Roffey Park on 10 September 2008, two coaches had agreed to provide elected 
Members with a briefing on coaching opportunities. He confirmed that the briefings had 
since been held at the group meetings on 27 October. Councillor Osborn commented 
that the briefings had been well received and that most concerns had been addressed. 
The Chairman observed that, though the briefings had been useful, few Members had 
signed up for coaching. Councillor Osborn stated that he would speak to individual 
Members and encourage them to utilise the scheme. The Chairman added that she 
hoped Councillor Stephenson would also promote the programme amoungst Labour 
Members and stressed the importance of finalising nominations as soon as possible. 
The Learning and Development Service Manager stated that he would aim to confirm 
nominations by 14 November. 

 
The Chairman raised concern that Members utilising the Coaching scheme might not 
make use of the training programme offered by Roffey Park. Councillor Osborn stated 
that the Member Development team needed to make a distinction between the two 
development opportunities to ensure that Members understood the benefits of both. 

 
Review of Member Development Activities since last meeting 
The Learning & Development Service Manager detailed training that had been run 
since the Panel’s last meeting. Councillor Osborn stated that it was not clear how many 
Councillors had undertaken the mandatory ‘Disability Equality Duty’ training and 
requested that he be provided with a full breakdown. The Divisional Director of HR & 
Development agreed to provide the information as soon as possible. The Chairman 
suggested that other mandatory training also be monitored. 

 
The Learning & Development Service Manager informed the Panel that the ‘Gambling 
Act’ training had been rescheduled as the original date had coincided with Diwali. In 
addition, he reported that the ‘Planning’ training, originally scheduled for 6 November 
and 17 February 2009, would now only be held in February. The November session 
had been cancelled as the external trainer could not attend. The Chairman expressed 
her disappointment with the cancellations and stated that communication channels 
needed to be improved. She also suggested that reserve trainers be made available 
whenever possible. Councillor Osborn added that all religious holidays needed to be 
clearly labeled on the Council’s calendar. 

 
During a discussion regarding the ‘HR Appeals Panel’ workshop held on 13 October, 
the Chairman asked whether any further training was to be offered. The Divisional 
Director of HR and Development explained that there would be further training but, due 
to forthcoming changes in legislation, it would not take place until the next financial 
year. Councillor Osborn stated that it was often difficult for Members to participate in 
Appeal Panels as hearings took place during the day. He suggested that it may be 
necessary to alter the membership pool to ensure that panels could be established 
quickly. The Divisional Director of HR and Development agreed to speak to Democratic 
Services regarding the matter. 

2



 
The Learning and Development Service Manager reported that two external councilors 
had attended the ‘Dealing with Casework Effectively’ training held on 21 October. He 
stated that some training, including the upcoming ‘Time Management’ workshop, was 
currently being offered out to other London boroughs on a trial basis. The Chairman 
commented that it was useful to have an external perspective and that it may be good 
for Harrow Council to seek external training opportunities. The Divisional Director of HR 
and Development stated that the Member Development team was interested in 
networking and, provided the quality was high, the use of external training would be 
explored.  

 
Planned Activity for Next Quarter 

 
The Chairman stated that she was disappointed with the number of Councillors that 
attended the e-learning event on 3 November. Councillor Osborn commented that he 
had tried the e-learning software himself and, whilst he felt the presentation was good, 
he had not been impressed with the content. The Learning and Development Service 
Manager reported that, following a trial, some Members had stated that the software 
would be of more use to new councillors.  

 
Councillor Osborn stated that he would look at the software again to see whether it had 
been developed further. He suggested that the e-learning software could be used in 
conjunction with coaching and other training, acting as an additional resource rather 
than a standalone service. The Chairman supported the idea and suggested that the 
Roffey Park interviews be held in the Members’ Library so that the e-learning software 
would be easily accessible. The Divisional Director of HR and Development agreed to 
proceed on this basis. 

 
The Learning and Development Service Manager informed the Panel that the next 
Action Learning Event would be entitled “Customer Satisfaction – Meeting the 
Challenges Ahead” and would be held in the Council Chamber. 

 
7. INFORMATION REPORT – Member Development Charter Draft Action Plan 
 

The Panel received a report of the Divisional Director of Human Resources and 
Development, which set out a draft action plan for achievement of the IDeA Member 
Development Charter.  

 
The Learning & Development Service Manager introduced the document and informed 
the Panel that the Member Development team hoped to invite Chris Hibard of Captial 
Ambition to visit the Council and speak to Members. He explained that the Council 
would be assessed in June 2009 and, as a key assessor, Chris would be able to 
determine the Council’s current position and suggest areas that needed additional 
work. Following a discussion, it was agreed with the Learning & Development Service 
Manager that the visit should be arranged in conjunction with the next meeting. 

 
The Chairman asked whether it would be possible for the Member Development Team 
to create a document that detailed the timescales the Council would have to adhere to 
in order to fulfill the action plan and achieve charter recognition. She stated that it was 
important that a working document was available to ensure deadlines were met. The 
Learning & Development Service Manager agreed to undertake the task. 

 
 

3



8. Any Other Urgent Business 
 
 Revised Evaluation Form 

The Learning & Development Service Manager reminded the Panel of the revised 
Learning Evaluation Form that was in development. He stated that there were plans to 
pilot a follow-up evaluation system whereby Members would be contacted three months 
after their training to see whether and how it had benefited them. The Chairman raised 
the concern that continuous follow-ups may irritate Councillors and recommended that 
a more standard form of feedback be adopted. 

 
Training Needs Analysis Form 
The Learning & Development Service Manager informed the Panel that he aimed to 
have a draft Training Needs Analysis (TNA) form ready by 31 January 2009.  

 
 
(Note: The discussion having commenced at 7.45 pm, closed at 9.16 pm) 

4



 

 
Meeting: 
 

Member Development Panel 

Date: 
 

3 February 2009 

Subject: 
 

Member Development Programme Update  

Key Decision: (Executive-
side only) 

No 
 
 

Responsible Officer: 
 

Divisional Director, Human Resources and Development 
- Jon Turner 
 

Portfolio Holder: 
 

Portfolio Holder for Performance, Communications and 
Corporate Services - Councillor Paul Osborn 
 

Exempt: 
 

No 

Enclosures: 
 

None 

 
 
Section 1 – Summary and Recommendations 
 
 
This report reviews the progress of the 2008/9 programme and outlines the forthcoming 
events for the remainder of the financial year for 2009 for elected members, in line with 
the Council Improvement Programme. It includes an update since the Member 
Development Panel on the 6th November 2008. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
The Panel is requested to note the report. 
 
REASON: The programme is designed to meet the learning and development needs of 
elected members in the light of the Comprehensive Performance Assessment and Joint 
Assessment Review feedback, as part of the Council’s improvement plan and 
performance development. 
 

Agenda Item 8
Pages 5 to 8

5



 

Section 2 – Report 
 
1. Coaching - Update 
The Roffey Park Coaching programme has been publicised on a regular basis since the 
launch events at Group Meetings on 27th October 2008. After all nominations had been 
received, a group of 9 councillors commenced the programme in January 2009; this is due 
to run through into March 2009.  
 
2. Review of Member Development Activities since Last meeting 
The following events have taken place since 6th November 2008. 
 
Mandatory Training 
Date Module No. Of Attendees 
17th November 2008 Gambling Act Refresher 9 
15th January 2009 
 

Legal Update – Code of 
Conduct 

20 

20th January 2009 Legal Update – Code of 
Conduct 

13 

 
 
 
Other Training Events and Briefings 
Date Topics No. Of Attendees 
12th November 2008 
 
 

IT Training Intermediate 
PowerPoint 
 

6 

18th November 2008 Time Management (run on-
site by the Local 
Government Information 
Unit) 

8 

10th December 2008 Members Quarterly 
Briefing 

9 

 
 
We are continuing to use a revised evaluation form for feedback and this has been 
completed by participants attending the above events along with anecdotal comments 
from both members and facilitators. The Learning Log/Evaluation form allows members to 
relate the benefits of learning for personal needs, benefits to the council and the 
community. Overall all the feedback about the programme has been very positive. 

 
3. Update on the Programme for 2009 
 
Action Learning Event – Customer Service and Satisfaction 11th February 2009 
This key event aims to challenge members on how we improve both Customer Service 
and Customer Satisfaction ratings. This will involve senior officers in facilitating workshop 
activities, a presentation by Tom Whiting, Assistant Chief Executive and a keynote 
presentation from Gary Welch, Research Director from MORI. 
 
Members Quarterly Briefing – 5th March 2009 
A number of Members have made a request to the Director of Place Shaping to add a 
familiarisation session at the next quarterly briefing on Householder Planning Development 
Rights. A suggestion has also been made by the Divisional Director of Audit and Risk that 
all members may benefit from a briefing on Emergency Planning, specifically “The Role of 
Councillors in a Major Incident. This is in addition to the Legal update and the input from 
Harrow Association for Voluntary Services and will therefore provide a full and informative 
session for the next briefing. 
 
 

6



 

 
 
Section 3. Planned Activity for Next Quarter 
 
Activity and 
target 
audience   

Provider Dates  Cost Aims  

Mandatory 
training 

All members in the target audience are required to 
attend this training  

Planning – 
Secured by 
Design 

Internal plus 
external 
consultant 

17th 
February 
2009 

Officer 
time 

To familiarise members with 
the background and principles 
of designing out crime 

Other learning events All members are encouraged to attend these 
sessions 

IT Training – 
Excel 
Introduction 

Internal Fiona 
Walters 

3rd 
February 
2009 

Officer 
time and 
Fee of 
£50 per 
delegate 

To gain a greater 
understanding on the Office 
Suite of software packages 

IT Training – 
Excel 
Intermediate/Ad
vanced 

Internal Fiona 
Walters 

15th April  
2009 

Officer 
time and 
Fee of 
£50 per 
delegate 

To gain a greater 
understanding on the Office 
Suite of software packages 

Members quarterly 
briefings 

These events are informal, open to all members and 
designed to enable members to dip in and out of the 
session as they wish to  

Finance 
Briefing – all 
members 

Director of Finance 23rd 
February 
2009 & 
12th 
March 
2009 

Officer 
time 

To update members on the 
Local Government Finance 
Regime 

4th Quarter 
All members 

HAVS plus relevant 
Officers from 
Planning, Legal and 
Audit & Risk teams 

5th March 
2009 

Officer 
time and 
admin 
costs 

Updates by Officers from 
Planning, Legal and 
Audit/Risk plus session led by 
Harrow Association of 
Voluntary Services 

Action learning events 
All members Gary Welch, 

Research 
Director MORI 

11th Feb 09  External 
speaker 
from MORI 
plus senior 
officers  

To challenge councillors 
on key issues relating to 
customer service and 
customer satisfaction  
 

All members TBC 28th April 2009 TBC To challenge councillors 
on current key issues 

 
Section 4 - Financial Implications 
 
All training costs will be contained within the departments approved budget for 2008/09. 
(£50,000) 
 
 
Section 5 - Contact Details and Background Papers 
 
Contact: Ken Howgill, Learning & Development Service Manager 
02084 241415 
ken.howgill@harrow.gov.uk 

7



8

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	8 INFORMATION REPORT - Member Development Programme Update

